
CITY OF SAN DIEGO 

PURCHASING & CONTRACTING DEPARTMENT 
1200 Third Avenue, Suite 200 

San Diego, CA 92101-4195 
Fax: (619)236-5904 

 
ADDENDUM A 

 
RFP No. 10089562-20-K     RFP Closing Date: August 29, 2019 
                    @2:00p.m. 
 
Bid for furnishing the City of San Diego with Helicopter Purchase with Mission 
Configuration Installation. 
 
The following changes to the specifications are hereby made effective as though they were 
originally shown and/or written: 
 
 

1. Delete the original Request for Proposal Signature Page 3 and replace with the attached 
Addendum A Request for Proposal Signature Page 3. 
 

2. Delete the original Exhibit B, Page 2 & 3 and replace with the attached Addendum A 
Exhibit B, Page 2 & 3. (Note: changes made in bold). 
 

3. Add documents SN 4037 Equipment List and SN 4037 Weight and Balance. 
 

4. Add three (3) pages Questions and Answers (Note: The questions and answers are 
being provided for informational purposes only, and are not part of any resulting 
contract from this RFP.) 
 
 

CITY OF SAN DIEGO PURCHASING & CONTRACTING DEPARTMENT 
 
 
Brent Krohn 
Program Coordinator 
(619)236-6044 
 
August 21, 2019 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Contract is executed by City and Contractor acting by and 
through their authorized officers. 

CONTRACTOR 

Proposer 

Street Address 

City 

Telephone No. 

E-Mail

BY: 

Signature of 
Proposer’s Authorized 
Representative 

Print Name 

Title 

Date 

CITY OF SAN DIEGO 
A Municipal Corporation 

BY: 

____________________________ 

Kristina Peralta      
Director, Purchasing & Contracting Department 

_____________________________ 
Date Signed 

Approved as to form this ___ day of 

_____________, 20____. 
MARA W. ELLIOTT, City Attorney 

BY:___________________________ 
       Deputy City Attorney 

ADDENDUM A 
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3. Pricing Quotation.

Proposers shall submit their pricing on the pricing schedules located in Pricing
Schedule Section A for helicopter and mission configuration costs, and Section B
for helicopter trade-in valuation as follows:

a. Helicopter and Mission Configuration Costs Pricing Schedule Section A

1) One (1) new aircraft that meets the minimum specifications listed in
paragraph A.5.a.

2) Managed mission configuration of one (1) new aircraft as specified in
paragraph A.5.b.

3) In addition to completing the Pricing Schedules, the contractor must
provide an itemized specification sheet for the “green” helicopter and the
mission configuration costs.

b. Helicopter Trade-in Valuation Pricing Schedule Section B

1) Estimated valuation of the trade-in aircraft SN: 4037 (time sheets are
attached as Appendix A-N708 SD Time Sheet 05-21-2019.pdf).  The City
reserves the right to change the aircraft designated for trade-in with the
understanding that the trade-in valuation might change.

4. Intent of Specifications.

These specifications are intended to describe the work to be performed, the
materials to be supplied and the requirements that must be complied with. The
City will consider proposals that comply substantially with these specifications,
provided each deviation is stated and the substitutions are described. The City
reserves the right to accept or reject any substitutions or exceptions.

5. Helicopter, Mission Configuration and Trade-in Specifications.

a. The HELICOPTER quoted in the proposal must meet the following
specifications:

1) Helicopter must be factory new with no previous owner.  Latest model in
current production.

2) Turbine Engine
3) 1 pilot/5 passenger cabin capacity
4) Cabin volume of at least 60 ft3 with no obstructions between pilot and

cabin area
5) Minimum cockpit panel width of at least 50 inches (to accommodate

extended panel for tactical equipment)
6) Minimum cockpit height of 4 feet
7) Flat floored cabin
8) Protective vinyl flooring (or similar)
9) VNe of at least 150 kts
10) Max takeoff weight of at least 5000 lbs internal load and at least 6000

lbs with external load

Addendum A
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11) Max endurance of at least 3 hours with no reserve (in cruise flight) at
90 knots

12) Capable of operating in high pressure altitude and hot temperature
conditions

13) Capable of flying at least 800 hours per year
14) Dual hydraulics
15) Dual Channel Full Authority Digital Engine Controller (FADEC)
16) Air Conditioning
17) Heating/Demisting
18) NVG compatible cockpit avionics and engine monitoring equipment
19) 200 Amp starter/generator
20)  Energy-attenuating seats (Pilot/Copilot) (Factory covered seat

cushions)
21) High skid landing gear to accommodate FLIR 380HDc
22)  Wire Strike Protection System provisions
23) Rupture resistant fuel system
24)  Exterior paint included (3 colors)
25)  High visibility main rotor blades (red/white stripes)
26)  LH forward opening (Hi-vis) front door
27) LH sliding rear door with lock open hardware
28)  RH forward opening (Hi-vis) front door
29)  RH sliding rear door with lock open hardware
30)  Full length boarding skid step on both sides of aircraft
31) Pulsed landing and taxi lights
32) LED position lights
33) LED anti-collision light
34)  Tail rotor guard
35)Manually operated main rotor brake
36)  Electronic Flight display with PFD/MFD displays
37) Back-up pressure altimeter and airspeed indicator
38)  COM/NAV/GPS unit
39)  COM/NAV radio
40)  Digital clock
41) Transponder (Meets FAA requirement for ADS-B in and out)
42)  Audio mixer box
43)  Kannad 406AP-H Integra extended range ELT
44)  Sealed lead-acid battery (capable of being installed in the most

advantageous location to maximize weight and balance requirements)
45)  The helicopter must be capable of the addition of an electric hoist at a

later time
46) The helicopter must be capable of the addition of an external load

system at a later time
47)  Includes OEM training for pilots and maintenance staff
48)  At least a 3 year warranty on Airframe upon delivery
49) At least a 3 year warranty on the turbine engine upon delivery
50)  Includes training for pilots and post maintenance check pilots

b. The MISSION CONFIGURATION (Completion) quoted in the proposal must
meet the following specifications.

i. The following items will be purchased and installed by the Contractor:
1) Install Copilot Flight Controls (collective / cyclic / pedals).
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RFP No. 10089562-20-K 
 

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
 
 

Question 1: REF: Exhibit B Statement of Work A. Specifications 5.a. 45 on page 3 - “The 
helicopter must be capable of the addition of an electric hoist at a later time”    
Does the customer want provisions (A kit) added to the aircraft so that 
installation time/cost is minimal when/if the decision is made to add a hoist? 

 
Response: The City does not want a provisions kit added to the aircraft.  The aircraft 

selected must be capable of accepting a hoist kit if the City decides at a later 
time to add a hoist 

 
Question 2:     REF:  Exhibit B, Pg. 2; A.3.b Helicopter Trade-in Valuation Pricing Schedule,  

Please provide the configuration of the trade-in aircraft (in the form of an equip      
that will be installed on the aircraft at the time of the trade.  
 

  

Response: See documents SN 4037 equipment list and SN 4037 weight and balance 
 
 
Question 3:  Solicitation Pg. 11; D.1 Award of Contract, Please provide the anticipated award 

date. If an anticipated award date is unknown, please provide a best estimate. 
 
Response: It is anticipated that the intent to award will occur in September/October 

2019, and award will occur in October/November 2019 
 
 
Question 4: Solicitation Pg. 8; B.1 Pricing, The RFP states: All prices shall be firm, fixed, 

fully burdened, FOB destination. Where is the “destination” Montgomery Field 
– ABLE base? 

 
Response: Yes.  Destination is Montgomery Field ABLE Base. 4141 Kearny Villa Road, 

San Diego, CA 92123. 
 
 
Question 5: Exhibit B, Pg.1; A.2, 5th Bullet- Option for the purchase of up to three (3) 

additional aircraft of the same make, model and mission configuration 
specifications. Response shall include how pricing would be decided and 
managed to derive the best value for the City, and if trade in option is 
available. Pricing shall be open to negotiation at time of purchase. Contractor 
must be willing to enter into a five (5) year agreement, a one (1) year 
agreement with four (4) optional one (1) year extensions to facilitate any 
future purchases that is contingent upon City approval and funding 
availability. Future purchases are not guaranteed. Is the City of San Diego 
obligated to spend allocated monies for any helicopter purchase during the 
fiscal year the order is placed? Can the allocated budget monies be transferred 
to a subsequent fiscal year? 
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Response: The City will place an order for a helicopter only when available funding is 
identified for that purchase.  Future purchases are contingent upon City 
approval and funding availability.   

 

Question 6: Solicitation Pg. 5; A.2. Tab A, 2.6 Manufacturer's Price List. Please clarify what 
is required from the Manufacturer's Price List. i.) Is this a specific form from 
the City? ii) Is this the same as Tab C – Cost/Price Proposal? iii) Does this refer 
to the Pricing Schedule on page 7 of Exhibit B Scope of Work? 

 
Response:  This is the base price of the “green” aircraft prior to the requested 

modification.  This can be submitted in the proposers chosen format. 

 
Question 7: Solicitation Pg. 5; A.2. Tab C Cost/Price Proposal, Does this refer to the Pricing 

Schedule on page 7 of Exhibit B Scope of Work?  
 
Response:        Yes. Please provide additional itemized quotations.   

 
Question 8: Exhibit B, Pg. 1; A.2, 6th Bullet - If Federal funding is utilized for the purchase 

of the initial helicopter or for future purchases during the term of the contract, 
Contractors are subject to the federal guidelines, attached hereto as Appendix 
B.  If provisions of the federal guidelines in Appendix B are in conflict with 
provisions in this contract, the more restrictive provisions shall apply. Will the 
City be using Federal funding in this acquisition? 

 
Response:       Federal funding will be used for this first acquisition.  

 
Question 9: Exhibit C, Pg. 14 of 21; Article VIII. Bonds, Does the City envision requiring a 

performance or surety bond for this contract? If so, we will need to adjust our 
price accordingly. 

 
Response:       No. 

 
Question 10: Exhibit B, Pg. 2; A.5.3. 1 pilot / 6 passenger cabin capacity. Please confirm the 

intended ALE configuration is for 1 pilot / 5 passenger cabin capacity. 
 
Response:        Correction.  Cabin capacity is 1 (one) pilot / 5 (five) passengers.      

 
Question 11: Exhibit B, Pg. 3; A.5.11. Max endurance of at least 4 hours with no reserve (in 

cruise flight) Please specify the cruise speed. 
 
Response:       Correction.  Max endurance of at least 3 hours with no reserve (in cruise  

flight) at 90 knots. 
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Question 12: Solicitation Pg. 9; 3.3.4 Discussions / Negotiations, In accordance with "Know 
Your Customer / Anti-Money Laundering" compliance mandates, this bidder 
is required to obtain certain information from potential purchasers prior to 
submitting a proposal. Please provide the City’s Federal Tax Identification 
number as well as the City’s headquarters address. 

 
Response:   City of San Diego, 202 C Street, San Diego CA 92101, TIN #95-6000776  

 
Question 13: Solicitation Pg. 5, Tab A, 2.5, Licenses as required in Exhibit B.  Please confirm 

which Licenses are required in Exhibit B. Is this regarding the FAA Certified 
Repair Station (Part 145) Air Agency Certificate and / or AS9100 / ISO 9001 
Certification. 

 
Response:      This is referring to the licenses held by the contractor completing the 

mission configuration per Exhibit B, page 6, 5.c.5. 

 

Question 14: Solicitation Pg. 5, Tab A, 2.6, Additional Information as required in Exhibit B. 
Please confirm what additional information is required in Exhibit B. We 
assume a compliance matrix for all SOW requirements will provide the needed 
information. 

 
Response:  A compliance matrix of the SOW requirements will provide the required 

information.  The mission configuration contractor qualifications per Exhibit 
B, page 6, 5. c. must be included in the proposal as well. 

 

Question 15: EOC Form for RFP Aug 2018 - BB. Work Force Report Form, Pg. 1 of 7 and Pg. 4 
of 7.  "Check the box above that applies to this WFR.". Please clarify if a 
subcontracted completion center located in San Diego county is required to 
submit a copy of the "BB. Work Force Report" form or if this is only required 
of prime contractor's managing office. If it is the prime contractor and the 
prime is not in California, do we just check Managing Office Work Force?  

 
Response: The Work Force Report is to be completed by the Contractor submitting the 

proposal. When submitting a Work Force Report, we would like to have 
information about the firm’s work force that is actually participating in the 
project or activity. If work for this project is to be performed only by the 
Managing Office, select the “Managing Office Work Force” box on page 1 of 
the Work Force Report Form. Please reference pages 4-7 of the Work Force 
Report Form for more information on how to complete the form. 
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